
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
APRIL 25, 2013 

 
 
 
 
Attendees 
Gary Gunderman, Planning Manager; Steve Langworthy, Director of Land Use and Long Range 
Planning; Rachel Ray, Planner II; Justin Goodwin, Planner II; Dan Phillabaum, Senior Planner; 
Alan Perkins, Fire Marshal; Jeff Tyler, Director of Building Standards; Barb Cox, Engineering 
Manager; Colleen Gilger, Economic Development Manager; Steve Farmer, Police Lieutenant; 
Fred Hahn, Director of Parks and Open Space; Laura Ball, Landscape Architect; Ray Harpham, 
Commercial Plans Examiner; Paul Hammersmith, Director of Engineering; Teri Umbarger, BHDP 
Architects, representing Ohio University; Steve Moore, Moore Signs, representing White Dress 
Co.; Brian Griffith, representing Edwards Communities; Bryon Sutherly, Chris Harmon, Ron 
Meadows, Todd Wales, Kevin Michel, Aaron Ayers, and Rick Schwandt, representing Nestlé; and 
Flora Rogers, Administrative Assistant. 
 
Steve Langworthy called the meeting to order. 
 
Case Introduction 

1. 13-038MPR – BSC Commercial District – Dublin Plaza – Awesome Skin and 
Body Care – Sign – 333 West Bridge Street 

Rachel Ray said the applicant is not present for this introduction and that this is a request for a 
permanent storefront window sign for a new personal service facility in the Kroger Plaza, 
located at the southeast corner of the intersection of Frantz Road and West Bridge Street.  This 
Minor Project Review application is proposed in accordance with Zoning Code Section 
153.066(G). 
 
Ms. Ray said she is in the process of evaluating the proposal based on the Code requirements 
for window signs.  She said the proposal is for two windows, each taking up 20% of the window 
area, along with a temporary sign on the third storefront window. She said that more 
information will be provided in the report for next week’s determination. 
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any questions. [There were none.] He stated that this 
application would be back before the ART for a determination at the next meeting on May 2, 
2013. 
 

2. 13-036WID-DP – ID-1 – Ohio University Heritage College of Medicine – Site & 
Architectural Modifications – 7001, 7003 Post Road 

Dan Phillabaum said this is a request for architectural modifications to three existing buildings 
and site modifications including the elimination of portions of an existing parking lot and 
landscape enhancements for this proposed college campus. He said this Development Plan 
Review application is proposed in accordance with Zoning Code Section 153.042(D).  
 

 

 
Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 
phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
____________________ 

 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 25, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 

 
Mr. Phillabaum went through the site plan and existing conditions on the property. He said 
there is an Economic Development Agreement with the City within Subarea 1 which includes the 
three existing structures, parking and ponds.  He said there will be modifications to each of the 
buildings. He said that the 7003 building will have changes on the northeast corner with a 
bronze vestibule and canopy and expanding the building footprint slightly but underneath the 
upper floors which project beyond the footprint. New railings are proposed around the existing 
patio which will be expanded with the addition of a retaining wall and canopy and . He said the 
7001 building will replace doors and brick flashings, the garage will be converted into an 
anatomy lab replacing the south overhead door with glass doors, the existing man door will be 
filled on the south elevation with block and clerestory windows are being added on the east and 
west. He said the dumpster and transformer enclosure design will match the building. 
 
Alan Perkins said he would need to have details for the lab sprinkler system, where the 
connections for hydrants will be.  

 
Jeff Tyler recalled that there was a rooftop wireless application recently approved for the 7003 
building for Verizon. 

 
Teri Umbarger, the applicant, stated that she was unaware of the building modifications 
associated with the wireless application, and said she thought there would only be a wireless 
structure on the ground.  Ms. Ray confirmed that the proposal included roof-mounted antennas 
and associated roof parapet modifications, in addition to the equipment shelter on the ground. 

 
Mr. Phillabaum said this is a LEED Silver designated project. 

 
Ms. Umbarger said they are defining a better entrance as a campus and changing the alignment 
of the driveway from Eiterman Road.  

 
Mr. Phillabaum said the last topic of discussion is the proposed sign. He said OU is planning to 
install a gateway feature with a monument entry sign with metal connected to a curved brick 
wall which meets the high quality standard of the EAZ plan.  He said there are Code 
requirements for signs, and as proposed the sign design would be considered two signs, which 
is not permitted. He said they are still doing an analysis and Planning agrees it is an appropriate 
sign for the campus and is located appropriately within the gateway entrance, but the review 
may have to be through the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
Fire Marshal Perkins said the site needs improved for future access, especially for the 7003 
building, since he has concerns with the existing conditions for access and that there is not a 
good way to get to the back of the building or to the hydrant access. 

 
Mr. Phillabaum said the tree replacement plan appears to meet code, and that there are 
approximately 90 inches being removed, but that the applicant is replacing a total of 120 
inches. 

 
Mr. Tyler said they need to pay attention to the ADA requirements as they move forward. 

 
Ms. Umbarger said OU had obtained State approval for ADA site accessibility. 

 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 25, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 

 
Mr. Phillabaum said they will consolidate comments and could meet at the applicant’s 
convenience to discuss further if necessary, and that this application would be back before the 
ART for a determination on May 16th. 
 

3. 13-037WID-DP – ID-1 – Nestlé QAC  Expansion – Site & Architectural 
Modifications – 6625 Eiterman Road 

Justin Goodwin said this is a request for a 32,000-square-foot microbiology lab addition and 
associated site improvements to the Nestlé Quality Assurance Center.  He said the site is 
located to the west of Eiterman Road and south of the South Fork Indian Run in the West 
Innovation District.  He said this Development Plan Review application is proposed in 
accordance with Zoning Code Section 153.042(D). 
 
Mr. Goodwin said they had a pre-application meeting in December, they have been working 
with staff for a long time and with this formal application a determination is due on May 16th. 
 
Mr. Goodwin said Nestlé has acquired 10 additional acres as part of real estate agreement with 
the City and the two parcels are now combined into an 18-acre site. 
 
Mr. Goodwin said this proposal is an expansion of the existing building to the west, a new drive 
aisle, a new retention pond, truck access, and a continuous drive aisle around the site. He 
showed the architectural elements of the addition with concrete masonry units and EIFS panels 
with metal screening.  He said there is a change in the refrigerant system with a series of 
coolant towers or tanks to the west of the addition. 
 
Chris Harmon, the applicant representing Nestlé, said the company is exploring a sustainability 
initiative to have natural refrigerant and they were given options to comply with which were 
very costly. He said that surprisingly, Nestlé has funded the costlier yet more sustainable 
option.  He explained that they are proceeding with an ammonia-based package filler which will 
be delivered to the site and contained in secured box-type buildings next to the cooling towers. 
 
Mr. Goodwin verified the height of the coolant tanks will exceed the maximum required 
screening height and said Planning will work with the applicant to ensure a sufficient amount of 
landscaping is provided to soften the appearance of the tanks. 
 
Mr. Goodwin said the applicant has submitted two administrative departures for landscape 
screening and tree preservation. He said that existing dense vegetation along the Indian Run 
already provides significant screening along the proposed north drive aisle and that additional 
evergreen shrubs are not necessary for the entire length of the drive, which is also located in 
the floodplain.  He said there are a number of trees to be taken out with the reconfiguration of 
the drive aisle and access. He explained that Tree Waivers are usually taken directly to City 
Council and Planning will work with the applicant to verify the total number of trees being 
removed and the total amount of replacements prior to review by Council. 
 
Barb Cox said Engineering has determined that deciduous trees planted in the floodplain may 
be okay as long as they are not obstructing the flow of water and debris. 
 
Kevin Michel, Nestle’s Finance and Control Manager, said they were planning for a “prairie” type 
landscaping plan in that portion of the site and were looking at quality trees and more natural 
plantings.  Mr. Goodwin encouraged the use of additional trees and plantings consistent with 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 25, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 

 
the character of the area and will review the plan with the applicant, but wanted to take the 
lowest tree waiver request to City Council as possible.   
 
Bryon Sutherly said they will put together the documentation to make the request for waiver 
clear to City Council. 
 
Mr. Goodwin said this application would be back before the ART for a determination on or 
before May 16th. 
 
Mr. Harpham said they will be reviewed through “E-Plan” and would have a 21-day review 
process. 

 
Determinations 

4. 13-032MPR – BSC Commercial District – Shoppes at River Ridge – White 
Dress Co. – Signs – 4455 West Dublin-Granville Road 

Rachel Ray said this is a request to install an 18-square-foot wall sign and a 4-square-foot 
projecting sign for an existing retail facility in the Shoppes at River Ridge shopping center 
located at the southeast corner of the intersection of West Dublin-Granville Road and Dale 
Drive. This Minor Project Review application is proposed in accordance with Zoning Code 
Section 153.066(G).  
 
Ms. Ray said they are recommending approval of this Minor Project Review application with the 
following conditions: 

1. That the wall sign be proportionally reduced in size to maximum of 15 square feet, 
subject to Planning approval; and 

2. That the wall sign be centered over the tenant’s main entrance to ensure that the sign is 
appropriately balanced on the building’s façade. 

 
Steve Moore, Moore Signs, stated that the tenant space is actually 32 feet wide, instead of 30 
feet wide, allowing up to 16 square feet. He asked if the first condition could be amended.  
 
Ms. Ray said it could, but Planning would need documentation of the actual width of the tenant 
space at sign permitting. She said approval is recommended with the following amended 
conditions: 

1. That the wall sign be proportionally reduced in size to maximum of 16 square feet, 
subject to Planning approval; and 

2. That the wall sign be centered over the tenant’s main entrance to ensure that the sign is 
appropriately balanced on the building’s façade. 

 
Mr. Langworthy asked if the Administrative Review Team members had any further questions or 
concerns regarding this proposal. [There were none.]  He confirmed the Administrative Review 
Team’s approval of this application with two conditions. 
 
Case Review 

5. 13-031ARB-MPR – BSC Sawmill Center Neighborhood District – Dublin Village 
Center – Edwards Apartment Building – Tuller Road and Village Parkway 

Ms. Ray reiterated that the ART determination and recommendation to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on this application was targeted for the May 2nd ART meeting.  
 



 
Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, April 25, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Brian Griffith distributed revised plans to the group.  He said the additions have been updated 
and the elevations have been refined, the south phase and project description is updated with 
the new street. 
 
Ms. Ray distributed a detailed Code analysis of the project and stated that these would be 
discussed in greater detail at the General Staff Review meeting scheduled for next.  
 
Ms. Ray reiterated that this application is scheduled for Planning and Zoning Commission review 
on May 16th. 
 
Administrative 
Mr. Langworthy asked Ms. Ray to provide a brief update regarding potential upcoming 
applications.  Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any changes to the April 18, 2013 meeting 
minutes.  Mr. Langworthy clarified for the Jeni’s Sign the calculation for the projecting sign is 6-
square-foot and the minutes need to reflect the correct square footage.  Mr. Langworthy 
accepted the minutes into the record as amended. 
 
Mr. Langworthy confirmed there were no further items of discussion and adjourned the 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Attendees
	Gary Gunderman, Planning Manager; Steve Langworthy, Director of Land Use and Long Range Planning; Rachel Ray, Planner II; Justin Goodwin, Planner II; Dan Phillabaum, Senior Planner; Alan Perkins, Fire Marshal; Jeff Tyler, Director of Building Standard...

